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The East Town Street Historic District contains some of the finest
mid-nineteenth to late nineteenth century residences in Columbus.
At one time some of the city's very wealthy and influential people made
thelir homes here. The areaz has been by very little recent construction
and most of the neighborhood remains intact. The district is primarily
composed of residential structures some of which have been converted
to offices,

Harry Vica jah Daugherty House; 481 East Town Street: Built of
brick in 1904, this two story house possesses somewhat unpretentious
features, Its steeply pitched roof, dormers, ornate chimney, and
veranda are characteristic of that era. A vestigal tower is expressed
in its rounded, northwest corner and roof.

Keppa Keppe Gamma National Hesdguarters; 530 East Town Street:
This house bullt circa 1852 is the focal point of the East Town Street
Historic District. This High Victorian Italiasnate mansion stands
two and one-half stories high with a cupola, The foundation is
forty flve feet square and is made of stone. Though modified by
an addition connecting the house and carrige house, Kappa Kappa Gamma
has been actively concerned with its restoration. Note especially
the paneled, arched entrence, windows surrounded by ornamented, stiltéd
arches, ornate, bracketed cornice, and cupola with fini=l.

Alexander Medical Supvly Building; 538-550 East Town Street:

A fine example of adaptive use, these two homes have been joined

with a brick paessage. The Benjamin Kelly house at 538 East Town
Street was built in 1844, and the house to its east was built cireca
1865, The Keever Starch Company restored both houses and joined them
circa 1940, Their efforts at saving these fine, Italiasnate homes
sets a good example for the district.

Fernandez Cortez Kelton House; 586 East Town Street: Built in
1852, the Kelton House was originally of a Greek Revival style.

At one time a classic, columned portico grasced the front, but now
only the original floor remains on the porch., Rectangular windows
ahd éntrance with €ransom and side lights are seen on the facade,

At the rear of the house is a two story wing housing the kitchen
downstairs and three servants rooms upstairs, Beyond that is the
attached carriage house with laundry room and a three hundred barrel
cistern under the floor, Little altered, it is a fine example

of preservation.
" Reverend Barzillia N. Spahr House; 621 East Town Street:

Designed by George Bellows, Sr. snd built in 1873, this two story
North Italian Mode house is magnificent. Still retaining its
simple lines, the house is well preserved. Especlally noteworthy
are the round-arched windows and bracketed = cornice and paneled
frieze, The handsome portico was added by architects Miller and

R eeves in 1924,
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2. Location

Beginning at the intersection of Grant Avenue and the first alley north of East
Town Street, go east to the first alley running north-south; follow it south to
E. Town Street; follow E. Town Street east to South Washington Street; go north
on S. Washington to Franklin Avenue; go east of Franklin 400' then north and
east along the rear property lines of the homes on the north side of Franklin to
Lester Drive; follow Lester Dr. south and southwest to the first alley south of
East Rich St., go west to S. Washington Avenue, cross it and continue in a line
400' then go north to E. Rich Street; continue east to S. Washington St. and then
north along it to the alley between E. Rich and E. Town; follow the alley west
to Grant Avenue, continue north to the point of beginning.

KEY TO MAP

Italian Villa house, 370 East Town Street

0'Shaughnessy Funeral Home, 405 East Town Street (carriage house)
Frederick Lazarus House, 380 East Town Street

Harry M.Daugherty House, 481 East Town Street

Kappa Kappa Gamma National Headquarters, 530 East Town Street
Alexander Medical Supply, 538-550 East Town Street

Fernandez Cortez Kelton House, 686 East Town Street

Second Empire style house § carriage house, 615 East Town Street
Reverend Barzillia N. Spahr House, 621 East Town Street

10. Trimmers Manor, 392 East Town Street

11. George J. Heer, M.D., Offices, 475 East Town Street

12. 124 South Washington Avenue

13. Loving Realty, 529 East Town Street

14. Wege Marble & Tile Company, 439 East Town Street (carriage house)
15. Allen G. Thurman House, 513 East Rich Street

16. 579 East Rich Street (carriage house)

17. 604 East Rich Street

18. Frazier School of Speech, Voice, Public Speaking & Dramatics,

565 East Town Street

LoNOTUTE, WD

UTM: 330/580 4425/260
330/540 4424/810
330/210 4424/780
330/190 4424/850
330/330 4424/860
. 330/320 4424.940

329/960 4424/890

329/940 4425/070
330/070 4425/080
330/080 4425/000
330/320 4425/040
330/300 4425/180
330/400 4425/190
330/400 4425/240

Ommounw >
Z2 R G-T

GPO 892 455
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Frederick Lazarus House; 380 East Town Street: Bullt im
1886, this 8econd Empire house 1s a fine example of the town houses
of the district. Occuplied by the offices of Henry B, Lacey M.D.,
the house is well preserved, The characteristic mansard roof
with gable dormers and heavy metal cornice are especially noteworthy.

Allen G. Thurman House; 513 East Rich Street: Bullt in
1879 this stone and brick house has fallen into a state of disrepsir.
Several porches have been added to the house. The upstairs of the
house once held a large library that has since been turned into
apartments., Particularly notice the cut stone facade; complex roof
and the tall proportions of the heuse,

Trimmers Manor; 392 East Town Streets Bullt in 1888 by :
Abram B, Cohen, this house has several unique decorative detalls 4
not used widely at that time, red sandstone lintels and sills, and
the terra cotta ornamentation in the panels between floors,
Especislly note the original carved doors, round brick ornament on
the second floor leading to the metal cornice, and the variety
of dormers.,

Frazier School of Speech-Voice, Public Spesking, & Dramatics;
565 East Town Street; Thls brick Victorian Italianate house was built
in 1882 by W.H. Richards, The form and detall of the house are
classical examples of the Italianate styles, bracketed eaves with
windows in = panelled freize, réund arch windows with bracketed sills,
and a five sided bay projecting from the west side of the house.

George J., Heer M.D., Offices; 475 East Town Street: This house
built in 1894 has been converted to office space. The house 1is
brick with stucco cover, Details that should be noted are the
high corbelled chimneys, high hipped roof with hipped dormers,
and the original fixed leaded glass windows in the first floor. A
well maintained coech house is to the rear,

Wege Marble & Tile Company; 539 East Town Street: This example
of Queen Anne was built in 1896 by W.C. Hallidey. The various
sizes of ornate wall dormers with elaborate wood trim are in very
good condition. Also, notice the circular tower on the north west
corner with conical roof and finial, heavy metal cornice with
-fr ieze windows and corbelled base. A carralge house is to the rear
of the house.,

579 East Rich Street: This vacant house is a fine example of
Victorian era construction. The fine craftsmanship on the
ornate massive brackets on the eaves should be especially noted.
behind the house is a fine carriage house. The interior of the
house is in poor condition, but still restorable. The floor plan
of the house has & central hall on the first and second floors
with 211 rooms connecting off them. The attic 1s a large studlo
11t by the dormers and frieze windows.
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124 South Washington Avenue: This house built in 1869 is
noteworthy because of the superb details in the barge boards,
double bracketed eaves, and porch., The front section of the
house is the oldest section with compatable additions in the rear
dating from the late nineteenth century. A large connected carriage
house is also to the rear.,

Loving Realty; 529 East Town Streets This 8econd Emplre
house is in evcellent condition. The owners are very concerned
with the buildings restoration. The mansard tower and fine
exterior deteils are to be noted as well as the elegantly restored
interior .

604 East Rich Street: This Second Empire apartment house is typiceal
of several in the district that are in very gcod condition. The
cornice work and mansard roof should be noted.

These examples of the fine existing bulldings in the East Town
Street Historic District should provide a clear over veiw of
the veriety of stvles in the area., This compact area holds perhaps
some of the most architecturally significant houses in Columbus.

With todays encroaching development a2ll avallable steps to ~
save and preserve this area must be taken., It is for thls reason

that they merit inclusion of the National Register of Historic

places,
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The East Town Stree

t Historic District is one of the most compact

. areas in Columbus contalning perhaps some of the finest examples of

. mid-nineteenth century architecture.

While not a completely

' homogeneous neighborhood in terms of architectural style, it possesses
some of the most lavish examvles of residential architecture in

Central Ohio,
| some infill renewal has occurred 1in the area.
if any additional razing will occur.

' following buildings.
Harry M. Daugherty built the house

. Daugherty wa

| practice.
" PEcoming Attorney Genera
Coolidge. Forced to resign from t

and acqulitted on a charge of co

Fortunately much of the =rea has been preserved,
It is hoped that little

Especially noteworthy are the

| s born in 1860 at Washington Court House, Ohlo.
| in law at the University of Michigan, h
Soon he w=s involved in a political career which led to his

1 of the United States under Harding and

he cesbinet in 1924, Daugherty was tried
nspiracy to defraud the United States

However

at 481 Eest Town Street in 1904,

Educated

e married and started his own

Government, Hig finfortunate involvenent in the infamous Harding scandals

tarnished his record somewhat,
Theodore Roosevelt,

of Presidents McKinley,
Noteworthy also is the fact the Harry M.

J. Edgar Hoover as-assistant director of - the FBL and

Taft,

He died in 1941 - once a personal friend
Harding and Coolldge.
Daugherty appointed the late
that he is the only

man to twice refuse to serve ofi the Supreme Court of: the U,ited States.
His house stands today as the only reminder of his brilliant, but
troubled career.

Kappa Kappa Gamma National Heedquarters was onc
Philp T. Snowden built the house ecirce 1852,
and the house changed owners several times.
was used as a temporary Gov ernor
David Todd resided there during his

Fugene Gray home.
suffered business reversals,
During the Civil War the house
by the State of Ohln.

tenure as the govenor.

spending considerable time and money restoring it.
organization is still actively involved in the preservation ©

house.

Governor’

e known as the

Snowden

Mansion

In 1951 Keppa Kappa Gamma purchased the house,
The fra '

nal
the

The Alexander Medical Supvoly Bullding at 538-550 East Town Street

shows excellent modification and adaptive use.
is becoming a more viable form of preservatio
The connecting of the two homes and c¢
has been tastfully done and retains t

hanged

they provide funds to support thelr existance,

This form of preservation
n in the present economy.

them into a retall outlet -
he quality of the houses and yet
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Built in 1852, the Fernandez Cortez Kelton House 1s an excellent
example of Second Empire. This house which has always remained 1n the
Kelton family is virtually unchanged. The house today is close to falling
into a state of disrepair as the last surviving member of the Kelton
family died recently. The significance of this particular
Second Empire house is the curved mansard roof.

The Spahr house at f21 East Towns Street was bullt by Reverend
Barzillia N, Spahr, pastor of the old Town Street Methodist Church.
Reverend Spahr commissioned George Bellows, Sr. to design and bulld
the house in 1873, The Spaar family lived in the house until 1961
when the property was acquired by Louis Vireck and converted into nine
efficlency apartments. Fortunately the exterior remains intact,

The home of perhaps the most nationally known and respected
figures of his time is at 513 East Rich Street. Thls Ia the home of
Allen G. Thurman, whose career of service to the State and Nation
can be exceeded by few men, The house was built in 1879 in the later
years of his 1life. Thurman was born in Virginia in 1813 and moved
with his family to Chillicothe in 1819, At the age of 31 he was eleced
to Congreszzerving one term in the house. He was then appointed &o
the Ohio Suvpreme Court and rose to be its Cheif Justice for four years
of his fourteen on the bench., In 1867 he ran forGovernor ©of Ohlo
against R.B. Hayes and lost one of the closest elections the state has
known be a mere 3000 votes. Many feel that this was due to hls stand
agalnst negro sufferage. In 1868 he was elected to the U.S. Senate
and served until 1881. His name was so respected that 1t wss mentioned
in 1879 and 1883 as a Presidential candidate. He ran for Vice President
with Grover Cleveland and but for a political oddity lost in 1888
(Cleveland was the incubent and was elected for the following term)
Thurman, nicknamed "The 01d Roman" passed away in the house's huge library
in 1895.

Because of these few instances of historical significance and the
districts considerable architectural distinction the East Town Street
Historic District more than deserves to be placed on the National
Register of Historic Places,
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East Town Street Historic Di trlct
Franklin Co., Ohio JUL 1Y 1976
Photo & negative: Ohio Historic Preser-
vation Office, David Brook, 1976
Apartments, east end of Town St.
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East Town Street Historic District
Franklin CO., Ohio

Photo & negative: Ohio Historic Preser-
vation Office, David Brook, 99759

S. side, East Town Street J 1976
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East Town Street Historic Dj trjigt
Franklin Co., Ohio ‘ﬁﬁ‘rPg 1976
Photo & negative: Ohio Historic Preser-
vation Office, David Brook, 1976
Addition on town house, E. Town St.
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East Town Street Historic District
Franklin Co., Ohio

Photo & negative: Ohio Historic Preser-
vation Office, David Brook, 1976
Addition connecting two townhouses.
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East Town Street Historic District
Franklin Co., Ohio JUL 19 1976
Photo & negative: Ohio Historic Preser-
vation Office, David Brook, 1976

SW corner E. Town & Washington Ave.
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

North & east facades, Harry M. Daugherty
House, 481 East Town Street.

MAY 2 7 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio MAY 27 1976

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

South facade, Kappa Kappa Gamma House

JUL 301976







East Town Street Historic Diistrict
Columbus, Franklin €0, Ohdio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975

negative filed - Ohio Preservation Offic

Fernandez Cortez Kelton House, 586
East Town St., south facade

MAY 2 7 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio wpy 27 1976
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed-Ohio Preservation Offtrce
north facades, 615 & 621 E. Town St.

JUL 3 0 1976






East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
Alexander Medical Supply Buildings,

South and east elevations, 538-550
East Town Street.

MAY 2 7 1976
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East Town Street Historic District i

Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio #fiy 27 9/0
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975

negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

513 East Rich St., north facade
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin C-., Ohio may 2 7 1978
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975 Yk

negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office
380 E. Town Street-north facade
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 19%5

negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

392 East Town Street MAY 2 7 1976
Ve JUL 8 0 1876
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475 BAST TowN <TREET

East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio“AY o 7 1976

Jay Hart,fphoto rapher, I97E"
negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

475 East Town Street, north facade

~oé  JUL 3 0 1576
/ gy el 26

| alolLi






East Town Street Historic Daistrict
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
pegative filed, Ohio Preservation Office

539 E. Town St., north facade

MAY 27 1976
Dee JUL 3 0 B/b
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‘East Town Street Historic Distrittt
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio yay 2 7 1976
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975

negative filed, Ohio Preservation Office
475 Bast Town, carriage house
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio MAY 27 1976

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed, Ohio Preservation Office

604 East Rich Street, south facade
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio v 2 7 WIE
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975 "/

negative filed- Ohio Preservation Office
Italian Villa style house-370 E. Town

pec  JUL 30 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975

negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office
0'Shaughnessy Funeral Home, 405 E. Town

north facade

MAY 2 7 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio MRY 27 1976

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

North facade, Spahr House, 621 E. Town
JuL 3 0 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio WY 27 1976
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975

negative filed-Ohio Preservation Office

carriage house, 615 E. Town St.

e« JUL 3 0 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed, Ohio preservation office

East Town St., 1ooking east from SE
corner of E. Town & Grant Ave.

| y 27 1976
Doe JUL 301976
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East Town Stfeet Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio

Jay Hart, photographer, 1975
negative filed-Ohio preservation Office

looking east along Town Street from

5. Washington Avenue.
BAY 2 7 1976
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East Town Street Historic District
Columbus, Franklin Co., Ohio e Bkl
Jay Hart, photographer, 1975 MNAY 27 1976
negative filed, Ohio Preservation Office
Franklin Ave, looking west from Lester 1Dy’
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Ohio Historic Site Preservation Advisory Board

July 14, 1976

Ms. Kate Cole

National Register of Historic Places
Department of the Interior

National Park Service

18th & C Streets, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Kate:

Awhile back we were contacted by one of the staff to provide pictures of
representative intrusions for the East Town Street Historic District in
Franklin Co., Ohio. I neglected to jot down who was reviewing the
nomination so I am sending the photos to you to forward to the appropriate
person.

Regarding the intrustions, most of them are backround buildings, such as
the small 1920's apartments in photos #1 & 2. Other intrusions are small
scale, modern additions such as in photos #2 & 4. The only high-rise

is at E. Town and Washington and I have enclosed a photo. The overall
impression of the district is residential and the character of the town-
houses prevail.

Thanks for expediting this.

Sincerely,

(Sguﬁfk)un);.ﬁikiuggsﬁac

Gretchen Klimoski
National Register Program Manager

enclosures

Oio Historic Preservatiom Orice

Ohio Historical Center [-71 & 17th Avenue Columbus, Ohio 43211 (614) 466-8727



ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

STATE 0HI0
JUL 3 0 1976

Date Entered

Name Location
Engels & Rrudwig Vine Company Building Sandusky ;
Erie County
Bagt Town Street Flstoric Distriet Columbus
. Frankiin Coumty
Loweilville Railvoad Station Lowallville

Hahoning County

Also Notified
Hon. Robert Taft, Jr.

State Historic Preservation Cfficer

Hon, John i. Glam. Jr. Dr. Thowmas M. Smith

Hon. Charles A. Moshew Director

Bon. Chalmers P, Wylie The Chio Historical Society

Hon. Charles J, Carney Interstate 71 at 17th Avenua

Regional Director, Midwast Columbus, Ohio 43211
Region

Mr. Robert F. Crecco; DO
‘ PR MMott/row e 8/4’576 ' : INT: 2050=75



Freddn—C0. OLio

Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation

1522 K Street N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005

SEP 7 1978

Mr. N. Jack Huddle, Director
Department of Development
City of Columbus

LeVeque Tower

50 W. Broad Street, Suite 401
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Dear Mr. Huddle:

We have received your letter of August 31, 1978, in which you determine
that rehabilitation of four properties: 1621 Franklin Avenue, 1623
Bryden Road, 362 Linwood, and 1063 Fair Avenue, Columbus, Ohio, will

have no adverse effect on the Nea istoric District, a

property included in the National Register of Historic Places.

The Executive Director will not object to your determination of no adverse
effect if the following condition is met:

Final plans and specifications for the rehabilitation of 1621
Franklin Avenue will be submitted to the Ohio State Historic
Preservation Officer for review and comment, prior to the start
of construction.

If you agree to this condition, please sign on the concurrence line
below and return this letter to us. Upon receipt we will acknowledge
that the Executive Director does not object to your determination of

no adverse effect. This will satisfy your responsibility pursuant to
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C.
470f, as amended, 90 Stat. 1320) and the Council's "Procedures for the
Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties" (36 CFR Part 800).

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

[ BIGNED

Myra F. Harrison

Assistant Director

Office of Review
and Compliance

I concur:

The Council is an mdependent unit of tbe Executive Brancb of the Federal Government charged by the Act of

Ak o LT i e dagh L M oA ey ) S AN g 2o a e el
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Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation

1522 K Street N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005

September 15, 1978

Mr. N. Jack Huddle
Director

Department of Development
LeVeque Tower

50 West Broad Street
Suite 401

Columbus, Ohio 43215

Dear Mr. Huddle:

We have received your letter & July 24, 1978, in which you determine the
expenditure of Community Development Block Grant funds in the Olde Towne
East and Fifth/King Streets Target Areas for Alley Resurfacing and Street
Lighting Improvements will have no adverse effect on the Near East Side
Historic District, Columbus, Ohio, a property included in the National
Register of Historic Places, and the Near North Side Historic District,
Columbus, Ohio, a property which is, in the opinion of the Ohio State
Historic Preservation Officer, eligible for inclusion in the National
Register of Historic Places. Your letter also requests the Council to
concur with your determination tmt the city of Columbus' Rehabilitation
Loan and Grant Program and Urban Homesteading Program will-also have no
adverse effect on the above noted Target Areas.

As you are aware, an Agreement among the city of Columbus, the Ohio State
Historic Preservation Officer, and the Advisory Council, governing the
city's Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) has been in place
for the past two years, and is now being expanded in scope to include
further undertakings of the city. Consequently, as long as the activities
in the Olde Towne East Target Area described in your May 24 letter funded
under CDBG are carried out under the terms of the Agreement, no further
compliance with the Council's Procedures is required. The Rehabilitation
Loan and Grant and Urban Homesteading Programs constitute part of the
expanded Agreement now being drafted, and activities should be governed by
the terms of the existing Agreement until the revised version is ratified.
As to the undertakings in the Fifth/King Streets Target Area, the city
should be aware that: pursuant to Section 800.4(a) of the Council's
"Procedures for the Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties' (36
CFR Part 800), the first step in Federal Agency consideration of the
effects of their undertakings is the identification of properties listed
in, or eligible for listing in the National Register within the area

The Council is an independent unit of the Executive Branch of the Federal Government charged by the Act of
October 15, 1966 to advise the President and Congress in the field of Historic Preservation.



Page 2
Mr. Huddle

City of Columbus
.

of envirommental impact. In cases where a question exists as to the
eligibility of a property, that Agency is required to seek a determination
of eligibility from the Secretary of the Interior. Until such time as this
determination is made, the Council can not respond to determinations of
effect. Such is the case with the Fifth/King Streets Target Area, and the
Council must withhold comment on the city's undertakings there until the
significance and extent of the district has been formally determined.

If we can be of any further assistance please call Mr. Jack Goldstein at
202-254-3967.

Sincerely yours,

—

yra J. Harrison
Assistant Director
Office of Review and

Compliance
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Council On
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1522 K Street NW.
Washington D.C.
20005

NOV 03 1978

Mr. N. Jack Huddle

Director

Department of Development

City of Columbus~LeVeque Tower
50 W. Broad Street-Suite 401
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Dear Mr. Huddle:

We have received your letter of October 24, 1978, in which
you determine that rehabilitation of 865 Bryden Road and

1085 Bryden Road, Columbus, Ohio, will have no adverse effect
on the Near East Side Historic District, a property included

in the National Register of Historic Places.

The Executive Director will not object to your determination
of no adverse effect if the following additional conditions
are met:

1. Prior to the start of construction, the Ohio State
Historic Preservation Officer will approve the shade of
the asphalt roofing and finish of aluminum sashes and
doors selected for use in the rehabilitation of 865
Bryden Road.

2. Ten eighty five(1085) Bryden Road will be chemically
cleaned using a solution of hydrofluoric acid not to
exceed 5% (weight/volume).

If you agree to these conditions, please sign on the concurrence
line below and return this letter to us. Upon receipt we

will acknowledge that the Executive Director does not object

to your determination of no adverse effect. This will satisfy



L—~Ctc:HCRS-NR

your responsibility pursuant to section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 470f, as amended,
90 Stat, 1320) and the Council's "Procedures for the Protection
of Historic and Cultural Properties" (36 CFR Part 800).

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Myra F. Harrison
Assistant Director

Office of Review
and Compliance

I concur:
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Mrs. Nancy S. Pennell
Resource Department
~Kappa Kappa Gamma

" Fraternity Headquarters
P. 0. Box 2079

530 East Town Street
 Columbus, Ohio 43216

Dear Mrs. Pennell:

Thank you for your inquiry of February 15, 1980, concerning

the listing of the Philip T. Snowden House (Kappa Kappa Camma
Fraternity Headquarters), Franklin County, Ohio, in the National
Register of Historic Places.

The East Town Street Historic District was entered in the Natiomnal
Register on July 30, 1 . Philip T. Snowden House is located
within the boundaries of the East Town Street Historic District.
Enclosed is information about the programs of the National Register.

If we can be of further assistance to you, please let us know. We
appreciate your interest in the National Register.

Sincerely,

Carol D. Shmll ['(‘Sgd‘-—,“f
Carol D. Shull

Acting Keeper of the National
Register

Enclosures
cc:  Mr. David Brook, SHPO, Ohio

bec: FHR: S. Harrison:jrb:343-6401:3-31-80
FILE COPY
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Kappa Kappa Gamma Fraterniry
HEADQUARTERS

530 EAST TOWN STREET P. 0. BOX 2079 COLUMBUS, OHIO 43216

February 15, 1980

National Register
Department of Interior
440 G. St. N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20243

Dear sirs,

When I took the position in my office as head of the resource department,
I was told that our building was either listed with the National Register
of Historic Places with the Department of Interior or application for such
had been made. I have been unable to find any documentation stating this
fact but am anxious to know the status of our 129 year old building, which
was once a governor's mansion during the Civil War. 4

Since we have restored the building in 1951, there have been many tours
given here, and though many feel the place quite worthy of the distinc-
tion of being listed with the Register, we want to know just where we

do stand. I believe our neighborhood may be listed, possibly under

Town, Franklin Neighborhood Association or just under Town Street, but

I'm not sure of the house itself.

Please let me know our status.

Sincerely,
Mrs. N. S. Pennell

Resource Department
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210Philip T. Snowden House

(Governor David Tod Mansion,
David Gray House)

530 E. Town Street, Columbus
Built circa 1850

Italian Villa Style

East Town Street Historic District

Dating from East Town Street’s earliest years as
one of the city’'s most fashionable residential
streets, the Snowden house has a varied history
and is a fine example of lialianate architecture.

The house was built about 1850 for Philip T.
Snowden, a dealer in silks and embroideries who
apparently encountered some business reverses.
He lost his elegant home in a sheriff's sale in
1860. Governor David Tod occupied the house
during the Civil War years of 1862 through 1864,
and late in the 1860’s the property changed
hands again, this time passing to David Gray.
He was a banker and railroad financier, and the
Snowden house remained in the Gray family for
about half a century.

During the early 1920s the Snowden house be-
longed to Clarence E. Woolman, and in 1923
the building began its career as an organizational
headquarters building when Woolman sold the
property to the Columbus Woman's Club. The
Woman's -Club occupied the house until 1941,
when'it was sold to Ohio Camp 3735 of the Mod-
ern Woodmen of America. | &
ow. . acquired the house,
and it continues to serve as the national head-
quarters of that women's fraternity.

The Snowden house is without question the city's
finest example of the Italian Villa style, which
flourished in the United States between about
1840 and 1870, Ac the name indicates, the
forms, decoration and details of the style were
derived from the farmhouse architecture of
Italy, some examples of which dated back several
centuries.

As it solidified into a style, Italian Villa gained vari-
ous identifying features. Houses could be either
symmetrical or composed of irregular masses of
symmetrical blocks. The latter design reflected
the random growth of the Italian farmhouse
model, as various rooms were added over the
years. The irregularly grouped Italian Villa style

170 Architecture: Columbus

‘bays wide, with a modified mansard roof sup-
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house generally had a tall tcwer, usually at one
corner. An example of this design is at 370 East
Town Street.

Symmetrical Italian Villa houses with only cne
main mass usually did not have a tower but rather
a central cupola or belvedere perched atop the
roof, as at the Snowden house. This house's
belvedere is particularly well-designed, with a
row of small round arched windows and an over-
hanging roof with flaring eaves. The ponderous
ball finial on its robf adds a whimsical finishing
touch.

In Italian Villa, as well as in : !l Italianate architec-
ture, window and door openings are given special
emphasis as elements in the overall design. They

are used as opportunities to add just a bit more
decoration, and to create a contrast with the
otherwise flat, blank wall surfaces. Round-arched
windows are most often used, and they are
invariably surrounded by ornate hoodmolds, as at

the Snowden house. Doorways are treated the
same way, usually echoing the treatment of the
windows surrounding them. The doors them- .
selves, usually found in pairs, represented B
another opportunity for decoration and often
were finely carved with great detail. 3

The Snowden house's wide paneled frieze and
bracketed eaves are other typical Italian *Villa
features. Frieze windows at the Snowden house

are small, rather nonfunctional circular open-
ings, but often frieze windows are large andTec-
tangular and actually serve to light the interior
space. An example is the Italian Villa house at 405
East Town Street.

$

Porches or verandas are universal on Italian
Villa houses, but the one at the Snowden house
is not original. A photograph from 1923 shows
the house with a single story front porch three

ported by heavy columns. Centered above, the
porch steps was a curved pediment echoing
those above the frieze of the house, and run-

ning around the entire porch was a paneled frieze
identical to that of the house. This porch in all
likelihood was original, and when it was replaced %
with the present porch is not known. However,

the present porch, a fine example of cast iron,

1s much airier and lighter, and it does not cbscure

the house's facade the way the original did.
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Advisory

- Council On
Historic
Preservation

1522 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

‘MAY 13 1981

Mr. Ralph W. Smithers
Director

Department of Development
140 Marconi Boulevard
Columbus, OH 43215

Dear Mr. Smithers:

The Memorandum of Agreement for the Community Development Block Grant
Projects for Program Years 1981 and 1982 affecting properties included

in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places

has been ratified by the Chairman of the Council. This document constitutes
the comments of the Council required by Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act and completes compliance with the Council's
regulations, "Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties" (36 CFR

Part 800). A copy of the agreement is enclosed.

In accordance with Section 800.6(c)(2) and 800.9(e) of the regulationms,

a copy of this Memorandum of Agreement should be included in any environ-
mental assessment or statement prepared for this undertaking to meet
requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act and should be
retained in your records as evidence of compliance with Section 106 of
the National Historic Preservation Act.

The Council appreciates your cooperation in reaching a satisfactory
resolution of this matter.

Sincerely,

TR PR A

Jokdan E. Tannenbaum
Chief, Eastern Division
of Project Review

Enclosure



Advisory
Council On
Historic
Preservation

1522 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

AMENDMENT
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus (City), Ohio, the Ohio State Historic
Preservation Officer (SHPO), and the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation
(Council) executed a Memorandum of Agreement on June 29, 1979, covering the
City's Community Development Block Grant projects; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. Sec. 470(f), as amended, 90 Stat. 1320) and Section
800.6(c)(4) of the regulations of the Council "Protection of Historic and
Cultural Properties" (36 CFR Part 800), the City proposes to amend the

Memorandum of Agreement to extend it through Program Years 1981 and 1982;
and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 800.6 of the Council's regulations,
representatives of the Council, the City and the Ohio SHPO have consulted
and reviewed the proposed amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed that the terms of the existing
Memorandum of Agreement will be extended to cover Program Years 1981 and

R&M&MM (24991

Executive Director
Advisory Council on Hlstorlc Preservation

City of Columbus

L), r@@“« (ﬁ (date)‘/ 3/6’/

Ohio State HlSt ric Preservation Offi e?’

G\’”‘Ww% (date)d = 5!

Chairman
Advisory Courcil on Historic Preservation




Advisory |

Council On :
Historic

Preservation

1522 K Street NW.
Washington D.C.

20005 | , 4/‘ugwﬂm

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1974 and 1977, the City
of Columbus, Ohio (City), Department of Development, proposes
to fund Community Development projects for the years
1979-1980, including Alley Resurfacing, Street Lighting
Improvements, Rehabilitation Loan and Grant Program,
Urban Homesteading Program, and Code Enforcement Program
within the Olde Towne East and Fifth to King Target Areas;
and, ’

WHEREAS, the City, in consultation with the Ohio State
Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO), has determined that
implementation of these projects may adversely affect
"Properties within the Near North Side of Columbus, Ohio,"
which is eligible for the National Register of Historic
Places and the "Columbus Near East Side Historic District,"
which is included in the National Register of Historic
Places; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966, the City has requested
the comments of the Advisory Council on Historie Preservation
(Council); and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the regulations of the Council
"Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties" (36 CFR
Part 800), representatives of the Council, the City,
and the Ohio SHPO have consulted and reviewed the proposed
undertaking to consider alternatives to avoid or satisfactorily
mitigate potential adverse effects on historic properties;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed that implementation
of the above Community Development projects for years
1979-1980 in the City of Columbus, Ohio, in accordance with
the following stipulations, will provide measures adequate
to avoid or satisfactorily mitigate any adverse effects
on the above-mentioned properties.
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Memorandum of Agreement

City of Columbus

Near North Side, Near East Side
Historic District -

Stipulations

j Prior to project implementation, plans and specifica-
tions for the Alley Resurfacing Program and Street
Lighting Improvement Program will be submitted to
the Ohio SHPO for review and comment. If the SHPO
is of the opinion that the proposed undertaking will
have adverse effects on historic properties that are
not satisfactorily mitigated, the City will seek
the comments of the Council in accordance with
Section 800.4(d) of the regulations of the Council
(Attachment 1).

2o All rehabilitation within "Properties Within the

.Near North Side of Columbus, Ohio" and the "Columbus
Near East Side Historic District" will be carried
out in accordance with the Secretary of the
Interior's !"Standards for Rehabilitation"
(Attachment 2). Plans and specifications for
rehabilitation not carried out in accordance with
the Standards will be submitted to the Ohio

SHPO for review and comment. If after review of
the material the Ohio SHPO is of the opinion that
the proposed undertaking will have adverse effects
on historic properties that are not satisfactorily
mitigated, the City will seek the comments of

the Council in accordance with Section 800.4(d)

of the regulations of the Council (36 CFR Part
800) .

34 All future alterations or rehabilitation and
restoration of properties acquired under the
Urban Homesteading Program will be based upon
an individual knowledge of such properties and
will preserve those special characteristics that
qualified such properties for inclusion, or
eligibility for inclusion, in the National
Register of Historic Places. Preservation covenants
will be incorporated into all solicitation of
offers and deeds of transfer or sale including but
not limited to the following:

a. The recipient agrees that the architectural and
structural integrity of the property will be
preserved and that any further rehabilitatiom
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Memorandum of Agreement

City of Columbus

Near North Side, Near East
Side Historic District

will be- carried out in accordance with the
Secretary of the Interior's "Standards for
Rehabilitation." Plans 'and specifications
for rehabilitation not in accordance with
the Secretary's Standards will be submitted
for review and comment to the Ohio SHPO.

b. The recipient agrees that architectural plans
and specifications for all activities not
defined as "rehabilitation" will be submitted
to the Ohio SHPO for review and comment.

e Prior to implementation, for all properties for
which demolition is the recommended action
.under the Environmental Code Enforcement Program,
the City will request the comments of the Council
in accordance yith Section 800.4(d) of the Council's

regulations,
(MUML (date) 4/ °/14
Deputy Executiye Dirkctor ;
Advisory Council og Historic Preservation
i 5‘ ) S$=15-729%
City of Columbus o
W (date) ‘S72//—2 ‘i
g Ohio State Historic Preservation Officer
3
: . (date) é/éVf/ef
Chairman /[ '

Advisory Cde?cil on Historic Preservation
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